MINUTES OF MEETING
FIDDLER’S CREEK
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT #1

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Fiddler’s Creek Community
Development District #1 was held on Wednesday, September 23, 2009 at 9:30 a.m., or
immediately following the Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District #2
hearing/meeting, at the Fiddler’s Creek Club and Spa, 3470 Club Center Boulevard, Naples,
Florida 34114.

Present at the meeting and constituting a quorum were:

Phillip Brougham Chairman

James Curland Vice Chairman
Jim Schutt Assistant Secretary
James Robertson Assistant Secretary
Robert Slater Assistant Secretary

Also present were:

Chuck Adams District Manager
Cleo Crismond Operations Manager
Terry Cole District Engineer
Carla Barrow (via telephone) Weiss Serota, et al.
Tony Pires District Counsel
Mr. Love Resident
Jesse Fritz Resident
Jack Perrin Resident
Mr. Quill Resident
Chuck Salvaggione Resident
Ms. Smith Resident
Mr. Blitcher Resident
Ms. Klentz Resident
Mr. Green Resident
Ms. Courtemanche Resident
Mrs. Robertson Resident
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order/Roll Call

The meeting was called to order at 10:13 a.m. Mr. Adams announced that all Supervisors

were present at Roll Call.



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 September 23, 2009

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Update: Foreclosure Action

Mr. Adams stated the first Order of Business is an update on the foreclosure action and
indicated there is no news with regard to the Forbearance Agreement. He advised that Mr.
Aponte has prepared an Amendment to the Master Trust Indenture for the various series that are
subject to the foreclosure actions, which essentially allows for the establishment of a remedial
account. They will utilize Debt Service Reserve funds to pay for all activities, pertaining to the
foreclosure, out of those specific bond funds. He added, to the extent that those are insufficient
to meet the obligations, then the obligation becomes a direct one of the bondholder; therefore, it
keeps them at an arms-length transaction and has no negative effect on property owners who
continue to pay their property taxes and thus, meet their obligation requirements under the Debt
Service Fund.

Mr. Adams then asked for an opinion from Ms. Barrow. Ms. Barrow indicated they
wished to state, for the record, with respect to their firm, the Retainer Agreement is, as they
understand it, directly with the CDD and, thus, they look to payment from the CDD. She stated
no problems are anticipated; they anticipate that the funds for payment will flow fairly, but as a
reminder, they will be looking to the entity that signed the Retainer Agreement to comply with
those obligations.

Mr. Schutt stated, basically, what you are saying is if the bondholders run out of money
in the foreclosure action and don’t pay it, Weiss Serota will look to the CDD for payment.

Mr. Barrow reiterated that they will need to get paid; they do not foresee any problems.
She stated, for clarification, they will be looking to the party that signed the Retainer Agreement
for ultimate payment.

Mr. Adams asked if there were any other questions or comments and indicated this is a
standard form of agreement. Mr. Brougham confirmed that, when it is signed, this Agreement
becomes effective on the date signed and an invoice has already been rendered for payment. Mr.
Adams stated the District has accrued some invoices from Weiss Serota and those will be
submitted, under this Agreement, for reimbursement. Mr. Brougham asked if that submission
goes through the normal process and Mr. Adams advised it goes directly through the Trustee, as
a part of this Agreement.



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 September 23, 2009

On MOTION by Mr. Brougham and seconded by Mr. Schutt,
with all in favor of approving the First Amendment to the
Master Trust Indenture, Fourth Supplemental Indenture and
Fifth Supplemental Indenture between Fiddler’s Creek CDD
#1, as the District, and U.S. Bank National Association, as
Trustee, dated as of September 1, 2009 relating to FCCDD
Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A and 2002B
and Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2005.

Mr. Schutt asked for an update on the foreclosure process. Ms. Barrow stated they now
have a listing of the various units and the obligations that are due thereon. They also have
started the process of engaging a title company to perform searches, which helps them find
everyone with an interest in the property, so they can name them properly as a defendant. She
indicated they anticipate that process taking approximately a week, more or less, so they will
begin crafting the Complaint and adding the defendants and will be within the timeframe
recognized at the last meeting, for filing.

Mr. Schutt stated, in the past, Ms. Barrow talked about defenses that might be raised
against the foreclosure and asked her for an example of a typical defense.

Ms Barrow explained, sometimes the borrower may say they have paid; sometimes the
borrower may say the wrong owner is listed; they may say there is a discrepancy with the
number or they may have a defense as to an offset. She stated it is too early to say; they will file
the Complaint and see. She added, in other cases, she has seen various defenses with respect to
the banks that may relate to the timing of when a Complaint should be filed, but, once again,
they are moving forward on the foreclosure and they will deal with those defenses as they arise.

Mr. Schutt asked if the defenses are raised as obstruction and delaying tactics or if they
are frequently valid. Ms. Barrow responded, it’s hard to say, but oftentimes, there will be what
they call “paper defenses” and the way to handle those is through a process called Discovery,
where you get documentation that will support or defeat the defense or you take a statement from
a witness that will defeat the defenses. They would pursue those types of defenses aggressively,
but they can’t say, at this point, that any of that will occur.

Mr. Brougham indicated, to Ms. Barrow, that he knows they are in the process of
exploring and determining clear title, or who all of the potential lienholders are and he asked her
what her anticipated end is to that process and the actual filing of the Complaint. Ms. Barrow

responded they would like to have those commitments within a week, approximately, and then,



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 September 23, 2009

in terms of confirming data and getting everything in forms, she hopes, within a week, thereafter
they will be ready to go, so approximately a two (2)-week period of time.

Mr. Brougham asked if there were any questions. Mr. Love, a resident, asked if any of
the properties that are being foreclosed on have any structures on them, or if they are all open
land. Mr. Adams responded they are open land. Mr. Brougham indicated it is his understanding
that there is nothing vertical on any of them. Mr. Love then asked if the open land is physical
area or if there is open land within established villages. Mr. Adams responded there may be
some platted lots within established villages, but the vast majority of it is going to be open,
undeveloped property. Mr. Love indicated he lives on Mulberry and right across the street, there
are two (2) lots. Mr. Adams stated he believes, on Mulberry, everyone is on-roll, but in some of
the neighborhoods that have recently started development, there may be portions of a
neighborhood that may still be off-roll that would be subject to this.

Ms. Barrow asked if she could excuse herself at this time. Mr. Brougham asked if there
has been any movement at all, that she is aware of, between the developer and the bondholders
and/or the outside investors, towards reaching some settlement on this matter. Ms. Barrow
advised there have not been any communications in their office regarding that. She indicated
that bondholders’ counsel may be on the line and may have something else to share. Mr. Aponte
was not on the phone and Mr. Brougham indicated that they have to assume status quo.

***Ms. Barrow left the meeting. ***

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Report: Engineer

Mr. Cole stated they have one (1) pay draw to review, that they processed during the last
month, which is Pay Draw #38, for the Series 2005 Bond, for approximately $46,000. He
indicated there are a variety of items, some of which are retainages that they have been trying to
get paid; some of the old invoices that have not come through yet. He noted one (1) of the larger
items was related to the Belle Meade Grade clearing, which has been ongoing. It is for
approximately $28,000. Mr. Brougham asked, with regard to retainages and the submission of
invoices, if these were invoices rendered to the District by subcontractors. Mr. Cole responded
they are rendered to the developer. He added, for example, on Page 2, under “Landscaping”, for

the main entrance fountains, $5,750 is the retainage due for the main invoice that was already



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 September 23, 2009

paid a few months ago. He explained that retainages are held on District-related items.
Discussion ensued with regard to retainage being subject to a statute of limitations.

Mr. Brougham noted this is not the first time the subject of retainages, that are not being
settled, has come up. Mr. Cole stated some of these retainages are ongoing and regular and some
of them are older. He said they are trying to clean up all of the old invoices, especially in light of
the foreclosure. Mr. Brougham stated there are some that you have not been invoiced for, but
you know you have some retainage. Mr. Cole agreed.

Mr. Cole stated he had also handed out an update of the Probable Costs to Complete
Work in Progress and indicated this was first presented in April. He advised they have been
trying to get the contractors to get all of their invoices in. He explained there are some old
retainage items and he has spent quite a bit of time, in the last few weeks, reviewing these with
the developer and the contractors. He said this list reflects an update. He referred to Item 6 —
Retainages/Previously Unpaid Invoices and indicated the $100,000 is the result of his efforts
over the last couple of weeks. He explained that these items have been updated to reflect where
they are today, versus where they were a few months ago, and some work has been done and
some of these items have been reduced from the previous estimates he had given. As an
example, he referred to Item #4, the Belle Meade Grade clearing, and pointed out this item has
been significantly reduced from prior reports.

In answer to a question by Mr. Brougham, Mr. Cole confirmed that the first six (6) items
are items that are in progress; they are not being held up by the bondholders. Mr. Cole added
that he sent this list to Mr. Aponte and to Mr. Adams on Monday and their direction, thus far, has
been to continue with what they are proceeding with. He stated, Item #1, which is the
installation of the sidewalk connections, is the only item that they haven’t started. He noted they
have the design done and the permits.

Mr. Brougham stated, for the benefit of the Board and participation and comment, they
have discussed the sidewalk connections on Championship for over a year; making the cuts,
making the ramps, making the sidewalks and basically making the crosswalks as exit to each
village. He noted they have the permits; they are poised to go. He indicated the last item of
discussion was the signs, the decorative posts versus the regular posts, and the fact that it would
cost $18,000. Mr. Cole noted they are approximately $1,100 each. As an update, he stated the

sign is a dark bronze in color and it has a base. He explained the base costs a few hundred



FIDDLER'’S CREEK CDD #1 September 23, 2009

dollars alone, so if they get rid of the base, they will save almost 40% and his recommendation is
not to put the base in. He indicated the rest of the sign will look the same as what is in the rest of
the community and they have also been able to reduce the number of signs by two (2) or three
A3).

Mr. Brougham explained he had a discussion with Mr. Cole over the last couple of weeks
and he had requested that he not go forward with starting the actual construction on these until
the Board had an opportunity to see a layout and to get the developer to buy in on the signs. He
stated if they recall, their discussion was that it might look like “signpost city”. He requested
that Mr. Cole give them the benefit of an aerial view of Championship, superimposed with where
the crosswalks and the signage will be, for consideration. He further stated this is $65,000; bond
funds are available, if approved by the bondholders to go forward, but they may want to hold this
project in abeyance, pending further comments he has to make at the end of this meeting. They
may wish to consider utilizing that capital cost for other capital improvements on Championship,
other than the crosswalks, and he will speak to that.

Mr. Schutt stated they are spending $65,000 of capital costs, but as a result of doing that,
they will have to spend quite a bit of operations and maintenance monies with it, which is the
signage and the crosswalks. Mr. Cole stated that is all part of the capital cost. Mr. Schutt asked
what level of signage the $65,000 includes. Mr. Cole responded, the ultimate level. Mr. Slater
asked how long the permit stays in effect. Mr. Cole responded, with this particular permit, he
would say generally, two (2) years, so they have lots of time.

Mr. Brougham stated his point is, this is capital money that they all intend to go to a good
purpose and they may decide to go forward with this, subject to approval by the bondholders;
however, there may be other areas to invest this $65,000 to mitigate some traffic issues that they
have on Championship.

Mr. Cole stated, if you look toward the bottom, the grand total is approximately $700,000
worth of work and the approximate bond balance has been updated to reflect the amount through
the draw he just presented, which is Draw #38, so the amount of excess funds that can be
released back to the bondholders will be approximately $6.6 million. Mr. Brougham asked if
Mr. Adams knows when they will be getting a reading back from the bondholders on these

projects. Mr. Adams responded he expects feedback within the next week or two (2).



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 September 23, 2009

A Board Member stated they had also requested the Developer, through Mr. Albeit, to
tell them how he feels about the signage and he asked Mr. Cole what happened with that.

Mr. Cole indicated he has not heard anything. Mr. Brougham stated he heard from Mr.
Albeit, by way of an e-mail, and indicated he has not had an opportunity, nor has Mr. Cole, to
discuss with Mr. Albeit, from a DRC perspective, whether they would go along with the
decorative post without the decorative base and he asked Mr. Cole to do that. He then asked for
a consensus of the Board to suspend the action on that project.

Mr. Schutt stated looking at Mr. Cole’s summary, there are estimated excess funds
available in the Bond Fund of $6 million and he hoped they would not go through that in the next
six (6) months. He added, so that everyone understands, this has nothing to do with their
assessment on their taxes; they are discussing the Construction Fund, the bondholders and the
whole issue of default on the bonds. He indicated there is considerable money left in the Bond
Fund, but essentially the bondholders and the trustee for the bondholders will now advise
whether or not they want them to spend that money and whether or not they want those funds
depleted because basically, it is their money, at this stage of the game. He advised, it does not
appear that they will ever run out of money for Attorney fees, with all of the balances that are left
in the Bond Funds, so the question becomes one of getting the bondholders’ approval to spend
money and, in this case, for the signage and the signs, $18,000 worth of posts as opposed to
$3,000 worth, but it is bondholder money. He added delaying it may or may not preclude it
being done in the future because there may not be any bond money because, theoretically, the
bondholders could take it all back and shortcut their losses.

A Board Member stated the bondholders might also act in their best interest and say if
they spend the money, which is their money, it will improve or maintain the value of their
property.

Jesse Fritz, a resident, asked who incurs the cost of this money, whether it is spent or not.

Mr. Brougham explained the money resides in trustee accounts and it is from the
proceeds of the sale of the tax exempt bonds. It is on deposit with the trustee and it is there
specifically to fund construction activities.

Mr. Fritz asked where the money goes if it is spent and where it goes if it is not spent.



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 September 23, 2009

Mr. Brougham stated, if it is spent, it is spent on construction activities that are approved
by way of the Engineer’s Report for the development; approved construction projects under
capital infrastructure. It is paid out to reimburse the contractors for that construction.

Mr. Fritz stated the bondholders get more return if it is spent than if it is not spent.

Mr. Adams stated that is actually part of this analysis that Mr. Cole was presenting. He
explained that there are certain infrastructure programs that are in process and there is a lot more
value to those infrastructure programs once they are completed and being able to serve the
adjacent property increases that value, so what Mr. Cole has done is to identify the costs to
complete those programs; the remaining $6.6 million is for future phases and, at this point,
maybe not something that the bondholders want consider. Mr. Brougham stated in the interim,
the bondholders are gaining interest on their money.

A Board Member stated there are a lot of on-going engineering projects, some of which
have not been completed, and that is what they are discussing; how much should they spend to
finish these projects off, because that is of interest primarily to the bondholders. Mr. Brougham
stated they are doing nothing without consent of the bondholders.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Update: Settlement Offer to OneSource
Landscape & Golf Services, Inc.

Mr. Brougham stated, for the benefit of the residents attending the meeting, as a
Community Development District, they employed OneSource Landscape & Golf Services, Inc.,
to do the landscape maintenance, along the District roadways, for a one (1)-plus year contract,
which the District terminated on November 30‘“, under the terms of their contract. He advised
this was because of their repeated non-compliance with the terms of the contract. They were not
doing a good job. He explained that when the District terminated them, monies were held back
until the new contractor could come in, perform a thorough inspection, find out exactly what
work that should have been done was not done, and they went through a very exhaustive
analysis. The District subsequently paid around $19,000, to OneSource, as payment for their
final month of work. That resulted in an ongoing dispute between OneSource and District
Management Staff regarding the work the District claimed was not done and OneSource claimed
had been done. OneSource filed suit against the District 30 to 45 days ago. The District

responded with an offer of settlement about two (2) weeks ago and OneSource was claiming in



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 September 23, 2009

excess of $59,000. The District offered them a settlement of $10,000, inclusive of Attorney’s
fees.

Mr. Pires reported, in the letter that he was authorized to send, he stated that they needed
to have a response back by September 17" as to whether or not OneSource would accept the
offer because, at that time, the time frame for the District to respond to the lawsuit was
September 18, 2009. On September 17™, he received a response back from OneSource, saying
that they rejected the $10,000, in essence, and they countered, saying they were willing to settle
for $37,341.34, and that was their final offer. The amount of $37,341.34 is the same amount
they offered to the District Management to resolve this issue back on April 6, 2009 and the
District Management felt that was not an appropriate number to resolve this dispute and he
concurred with that, as did the Board.

Mr. Pires indicated the time to respond was extended until today, September 23™. Not
knowing what the Board’s action may be, he prepared the necessary responses to the lawsuit and
motions to dismiss two (2) of the counts entered. It is ready to be signed and hand delivered. He
indicated he and Mr. Adams had some brief discussions with regard to whether or not they
would recommend to the Board to accept, or even respond to the correspondence from
OneSource. If the Board was inclined to try to resolve this before it goes into litigation, they
could make another counter-offer; after the District files its response, they could still make
offers. He added that, in every litigation of this type, the courts always require mediation before
getting to trial, so at some point, they need to try to mediate it anyway. He explained that it is a
non-binding mediation, whereby, if the parties agree, they do; if they don’t, they don’t. They
have to try to resolve this, in good faith. If the Board is inclined for them to try, in spite of their
efforts to make this a statement of their final offer, they are willing to entertain some discussion
by the Board. If not, he is ready to file the District’s responses today.

A Board Member asked if they are incurring any additional costs by going back and
forth. Mr. Pires stated the cost for him to prepare the necessary response, in case they got caught
at the last minute, has been incurred. From the standpoint of additional costs for discovery,
depositions, etc., he has not drafted any discovery documents, nor have any depositions been
scheduled. He stated to date, it has been a relatively minimal expenditure; probably 15 -20 hours
to do the research to prepare the response. Mr. Brougham stated you are being paid your normal

contractual fee for the legal work. Mr. Pires stated, at a higher rate; that is correct. Mr.



FIDDLER’S CREEK CDD #1 September 23, 2009

Brougham stated he would like to entertain comments or opinions. Mr. Pires stated he does not
want to have a discussion on the strengths and weaknesses of their position. He advised those
are the kinds of discussions they can only have in a Closed Door Session. Mr. Brougham stated
he thinks they need to give him some direction today. Mr. Pires stated that, once again, he is
ready to file the answer today. Mr. Schutt stated they should just file their answer. He added
Mr. Pires has indicated he has prepared a response and they still have the opportunity to
negotiate after that fact, so he feels they should file the response and decide where to go from
there. He added that Mr. Pires has prepared a response relative to dismiss points one (1) and two
Q).

Mr. Pires stated there were three (3) counts to the lawsuit. He drafted a Motion to
dismiss two (2) of those counts, saying they failed to state a cause of action. He advised, as to
the Breach of Contract claim, he prepared an answer, affirmative defenses, which are defenses
we assert to defeat their claim and then a counter-claim for Breach of Contract that they engaged
in. He stated that will be our response as to the Breach of Contract.

Mr. Schutt stated they arrived at this after reviewing the contract and feeling that they had
a case. He indicated he does not think the Board has changed its mind; they still have a case;
therefore, they should pursue it. A Board Member stated six (6) months ago, our District
Manager told us, at this exact same money value, that this was invalid, so why should we change
our opinion now; it is still invalid today. Mr. Slater agreed. He advised they had stated their
position before and nothing has changed. Mr. Brougham concurred. He stated they made their
final offer and he can hear the Board saying they are not going to counter.

Mr. Pires stated he will file the District’s response.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes

. August 26, 2009 Public Hearing and Regular Meeting

Mr. Brougham stated the next item is approval of the minutes. He noted Mr. Fulker’s
first name has one (1) “n” and he is not a resident; he is with Cardinal Management. He then
indicated on Page 3, on Line 95, the third word in should be spelled differently; it is pallet in
terms of a pallet of landscaping.

Mr. Robertson advised on Page 5, Mr. Brougham made a statement to the Developer,

during this portion of the discussion, that basically stated if construction was reestablished, he

10






12




13



14



15








































































